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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I'd like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me this morning are Committee Members Helen

          6  Sears, Melinda Katz, Simcha Felder, Al Vann and

          7  Robert Jackson.

          8                 If you have to have a conversation,

          9  please take it outside.

         10                 We have a number of items on the

         11  agenda, but first let me say that the main item

         12  which we had the public hearing on at the last

         13  meeting, the Jamaica Plan, Land Use Nos 498 through

         14  502, we had the public hearing, we are not going to

         15  take the vote today on that item. The Council

         16  members and the Council are still in negotiation

         17  with the Department of City Planning, so the vote

         18  will be laid over until tommorow morning at 9:55,

         19  before the 10:00 Land Use meeting.

         20                 However, there are two items that are

         21  part of this plan where City Planning did not have

         22  time to get to us, so we'll conduct the public

         23  hearing on those two items, and we'll start with

         24  that first.

         25                 That is Land Use No. 520, 521,
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          2  C070158 MMQ, and C07318 PPQ. And I'll ask the

          3  Department of City Planning, are they here to give

          4  the -- John. John Young, who is not in the room.

          5  Where did he go? I see we're also joined by Council

          6  Member James Gennaro, who covers part of the Jamaica

          7  Plan.

          8                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

          9  Avella, City Council members. I'm John Young, I'm

         10  Director of the Queens Office for the Department of

         11  City Planning, and I am pleased to be here on behalf

         12  of City Planning Chair Amanda Burden, and I am going

         13  to be speaking regarding an application actually

         14  submitted by the Department of Citywide

         15  Administrative Services, which proposes the

         16  disposition of one City-owned property, Block

         17  10-209, Lot 115, to facilitate future development in

         18  Downtown Jamaica.

         19                 The City intends to dispose of this

         20  property to EDC, and it is anticipated that EDC, New

         21  York City Economic Development Corporation, will

         22  issue a request for proposals for site development

         23  pursuant to proposed C62 zoning, which is part of

         24  the Jamaica Plan.

         25                 The site is approximately 45,000
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          2  square foot, City-owned lot, developed for the

          3  former public parking garage, used by the New York

          4  City Police Department. It is located on the east

          5  side of 168th Street, between Jamaica and Archer

          6  Avenues. The property is currently zoned M1-5, which

          7  has a maximum floor ratio for light industrial uses

          8  and commercial uses of five. And it's proposed to be

          9  rezoned to C6-2 within the proposed special downtown

         10  Jamaica district.

         11                 The proposed zoning would allow new

         12  mixed use, residential and commercial and community

         13  facility development and a maximum FAR of six or

         14  maximum floor ratio of 7.2, if inclusionary housing

         15  provisions are used.

         16                 That's it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         18  from Committee members?

         19                 Seeing none, thank you, John.

         20                 I do not see anybody signed up to

         21  speak on these two items; is that correct? Seeing

         22  none, I will close the public hearing on it. These

         23  two items will obviously be voted as part of the

         24  overall Jamaica Plan, and as I mentioned, the actual

         25  vote will be laid over til tomorrow at 9:55,
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          2  immediately before the 10:00 Land Use Committee

          3  meeting, to give the Council members and the

          4  Speaker's staff more time to negotiate with the

          5  Department of City Planning and the Administration.

          6                 We will now move on to the next item,

          7  450 West 17th Street, C060341 ZSM. Application

          8  submitted by 17th and 10th Associates.

          9                 MR. MASYR: Good morning, Mr. Chair.

         10  My name is Jesse Masyr.  I'm a member of the firm of

         11  Wachtel and Masir, and I'm joined by my colleague

         12  Jerry Johnson also of our firm for an application of

         13  an enlargement of an accessory parking garage in

         14  Community Board 4 in Manhattan.

         15                 With your indulgence, I will let Mr.

         16  Johnson make a short presentation.

         17                 MR. JOHNSON: Hello.  We represent

         18  17th and 10th Associates, the applicant is this

         19  application for a special permit under Section 13-

         20  561 of the Zoning Resolution to allow an increase in

         21  the number of parking spaces within an accessory

         22  parking garage at new building know as Caledonia.

         23                 This development is one of the first

         24  new buildings to be constructed adjacent to the

         25  Highline pursuant to the Special West Chelsea
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          2  District and is located on the west side of 10th

          3  Avenue between --  actually it's on the east side of

          4  10th Avenue -  between West 16th and West 17th.  The

          5  development previously has applied for and received

          6  a bonus pursuant to 9825 of the Zoning Resolution

          7  and when completed will include a public access

          8  stair, an elevator, public restrooms and a

          9  maintenance service facility for the Highline.

         10                 The building is currently under

         11  construction and the first units are scheduled to be

         12  occupied by the end of this year. The garage,

         13  located in the cellar, ground and mezzanine levels

         14  of the building, has access in egress from both West

         15  16th and West 17th Streets, provides the required

         16  number of reservoir spaces and will be fully

         17  attended.

         18                 The Zoning Resolution permits 100

         19  accessory parking spaces as of right.  This

         20  application seeks to increase that number by 110 for

         21  a total 210 to meet the demand for accessory spaces

         22  within the building.  The garage entrances and exits

         23  are so located as to draw little or no traffic

         24  through the local residential streets, and the

         25  analysis provided within the findings and the EAS
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          2  demonstrate no impact to traffic congestion or

          3  vehicular and pedestrian movement within the area.

          4                 The application demonstrates

          5  compliance will all findings found in the Special

          6  Permit under Resolution Section 13 561, and the

          7  Environmental Review conducted showed no impact from

          8  the proposed increase of 110 spaces.

          9                 As of the end of last week, in

         10  discussions with Speaker's Office, we have agreed

         11  also to post additional signage on the garage that

         12  ensures that the garage will be operated as

         13  accessory, and that people pulling into the garage

         14  will know that it's for parking for the Caledonia

         15  and Equinox, which is a tenant in the building,

         16  only.  If so requested, we will reduce the number of

         17  spaces in the garage at the Speaker's request.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Are those

         19  commitments reflected in the August 17th letter to

         20  Kate Seely-Kirk, the Chief-of-Staff for the

         21  Speaker's District Office?

         22                 MR. JOHNSON: That's correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have a copy.

         24  So we'll submit that into the record.

         25                 Given the agreement, the Speaker is
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          2  in favor of the application.  Are there any

          3  questions from Committee members?

          4                 Seeing none, thank you, gentlemen.

          5                 MR. JOHNSON: Thank you.

          6                 MR. MASYR: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't see

          8  anybody signed up to speak on this item.  Is that

          9  correct?  Okay.  We'll close the public hearing on

         10  this item and move to Land Use No. 513, application

         11  by Athens Cafe to continue, maintain and operate an

         12  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 3207 30th

         13  Avenue, 20075373 TCQ.

         14                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Good morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning.

         16  You're the owner?

         17                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: I'm the Managing

         18  Director.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You're the

         20  manager.  Now I understand there was some confusion

         21  that you didn't know until late last week that this

         22  was actually on the schedule.

         23                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you give us

         25  a little presentation about what it is you're
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          2  seeking to do?

          3                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: We're seeking to

          4  maintain our outdoor sidewalk cafe located at 3207

          5  30th Avenue in Astoria. We've been operating since

          6  1992, and we would like to maintain that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: How many tables

          8  and chairs do you currently have?

          9                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: 28 and 86.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now are you aware

         11  that you've accumulated 28 violations from the

         12  Department of Consumer Affairs since you've since

         13  you opened in 1994?  Nine violations were for

         14  unlicensed activity and 19 were for violating cafe

         15  regulations, like too many tables and chairs,

         16  clearance violations, and staying open later than

         17  allowed by law.

         18                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Yes, but that was a

         19  very long time ago though.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: When you say that

         21  was a very long time ago, when was the last

         22  violation that you were issued?

         23                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: I believe it was in

         24  2005, and it was for none of those reasons that you

         25  mentioned.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That's not that

          3  long ago.  You also were padlocked for three days,

          4  you had a $10,000 dollar fine, and apparently you

          5  use propane heaters with people smoking right next

          6  to the heaters.  Obviously these are very serious

          7  issues. What are you doing to rectify these

          8  conditions?

          9                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: We entered an

         10  agreement with Consumer Affairs and we corrected all

         11  the problems they had, and they gave us a two- year

         12  period and said that if we don't get any violations

         13  then everything should be okay.  We entered a

         14  written agreement with them.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well I think

         16  what's appropriate, and given the fact that you say

         17  that you didn't receive notice, we will lay the vote

         18  over on this item until tomorrow morning.  I have

         19  been in conversation with Council Member Peter

         20  Vallone, and he is obviously very concerned about

         21  the number of violations and how you've been

         22  operating here.  It would be very easy for me and

         23  this Committee to throw the book at you, very easy,

         24  but what I want you to think about is think about

         25  what I've said here today and let's have a follow-
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          2  up conversation tomorrow morning before we take the

          3  vote.

          4                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          6  Helen Sears

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just have a

          8  comment.  I know this cafe, and I know how busy they

          9  get.  One of the things about cafes is that they are

         10  in mixed use, and you've got residents.  I know

         11  exactly where you are.  You're mixed in with a

         12  residential area.  So when you pile up the

         13  violations most of the time they are coming from the

         14  community  --  I mean the residents in the community

         15    --  and I would strongly urge you to consider that

         16  because you are always packed.  They really have a

         17  lot of people from the community that sit out there

         18  on a warm night, and Astoria has its parks and it

         19  has its cafes.

         20                 I know this cafe, but at the same

         21  time, violations --  You need to really look at

         22  that, as the Chair says, and I suggest you do that

         23  so that you keep the cafe and you keep servicing the

         24  community, but at the same time, not racking up all

         25  these violations because it becomes very difficult
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          2  to support renewals if you continue to do that.  You

          3  do run a good cafe.

          4                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          6                 Council Member Katz

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm just

          8  curious, have you had conversations with Peter

          9  Vallone, Jr.?

         10                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Pardon me.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Have you had

         12  conversations with Peter Vallone, Jr. Regarding

         13  this?

         14                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: No, not any

         15  recently.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You haven't

         17  spoken to your Councilman about this?

         18                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: We didn't know that

         19  we were supposed to be here until Friday.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Why didn't you

         21  know that?

         22                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: We found out on

         23  Friday.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Why didn't you

         25  know that?  Do you know?
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          2                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: I don't know when

          3  this letter came out, but he was on vacation and we

          4  didn't see it until Friday.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But you knew you

          6  had an application in, right?

          7                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Certainly.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Did you know the

          9  process by which an application goes forward?

         10                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Yes, and we didn't

         11  know that this hearing was a process.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So before you

         13  did the application  --  I just would like to know

         14   --  did the Councilman reach out to your

         15  institution at all when you had these violations?

         16                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: We spoke with

         17  Councilman Vallone I would say two years ago.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         19                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: When the problem

         20  with Consumer Affairs came up in 2005, and those

         21  three violations came one after the other, they

         22  weren't about over- extending or anything.  It was a

         23  trend in the neighborhood after the smoking law.

         24  Everybody was putting plastic around the chairs for

         25  the winter time.  Everybody thought that it was okay
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          2  for people to smoke thinking it was unenclosed.  You

          3  know everybody did it.  We did it, and you know we

          4  are the easy target, and we ended up where we ended

          5  up.  That was when we spoke with Councilman Vallone.

          6                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Are you Nick?  Are

          7  you Mr. Gregoriou?  So we sent you a notice on July

          8  25th that the hearing was happening.  You were out

          9  of town?  Is that the idea?

         10                 MR. GREGORIOU: I was on vacation.  I

         11  just talked to the gentlemen.  I was on vacation.  I

         12  came Friday.  I find this letter.  Actually, I make

         13  a call and nobody answered me.  I made a call Friday

         14  as soon as I came back.  I came today here.  I did

         15  prepare.  I find the gentlemen here that I know.  I

         16  didn't know what it's about.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  I don't

         18  want to dig up a dead horse just to beat it.  So

         19  let's just, if I can  --

         20                 MR. GREGORIOU: That's the only thing

         21  I ask.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The interesting

         23  part about this is that it's unusual to have so many

         24  violations against an organization and not have the

         25  Councilman sort of be involved.  I assume that he
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          2  was when you had the violations, like you said.  So

          3  that makes sense to me now, but before tomorrow, I

          4  think that in addition to just thinking about it, as

          5  the Chair said, I think I'd like to hear from

          6  Councilman Vallone and find out what the opinion is

          7  because this is a very popular cafe.  I mean it just

          8  is.  When you go there, there's people there and

          9  people are enjoying it. It's a large part of their

         10  community in Astoria, but on the other hand,

         11  organizations need to understand that the need to

         12  deal with the Councilman and that if there are

         13  violations, you can't just come back and think that

         14  it's going to be okay.  So I would like to --  I

         15  understand that you corrected them and stuff, but as

         16  you move forward, we need to know that everything is

         17  still going to be okay. Because it is so crowded,

         18  you want to make sure that it's safe.  So I'd like

         19  to hear from the Councilman as well by tomorrow

         20  whoever is here for him.  I assume someone is here

         21  for him, or I'll call him. Thank you.

         22                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Thank you.

         23                 MR. WYGODA: Hello.  My name is Steve

         24  Wygoda.  I'm an architect.  Just so you know why I'm

         25  sitting here is that this gentleman just recognized
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          2  me from having done sidewalk cafes in front of the

          3  Community Board in Astoria, and asked me to sit next

          4  to him.  This is the first time I'm hearing about

          5  any of this.  I'd be very happy to speak to him

          6  about helping him reconstruct the entire project and

          7  make sure that he, moving forward, hopefully will do

          8  it according to what is required.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Steve, the only

         10  thing that I would ask is  -- obviously you didn't

         11  know you were going to sitting there  --  fill out a

         12  speaker's slip.

         13                 MR. WYGODA: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         15  Sears

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just find it

         17  a little astounding that you are in business as long

         18  as you are and run a very popular cafe and not

         19  understand that there is a whole process

         20  particularly with outdoor cafes getting a lot of

         21  notoriety because they are open late and they're

         22  really disturbing communities. Nobody spoke  --  Was

         23  there a Councilman is this area?  I find that hard

         24  to believe because you had to work with him in order

         25  for your process to even be  --  your application
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          2   --  to even be processed. All right.  I think that

          3  really what's suggested take place because it's a

          4  little  --  I don't know what's wrong with this one.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We obviously have

          6  been in conversation  --  you know the staff and

          7  myself  --  with Council Member Peter Vallone, and

          8  I'm sure, based upon those conversations, that he

          9  has been in touch with the owners of this

         10  restaurant.  When was the last conversation, I can't

         11  ascertain, but I think I would expect all three of

         12  you, if you're going to be employed, to come back

         13  tomorrow morning and we will have a follow- up

         14  conversation before we take a vote.

         15                 If you're going to speak, speak into

         16  the mic Council Member.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Also what the

         18  violations are. Are they still outstanding?  Have

         19  they all been resolved?  I don't get that.

         20                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: They've all been

         21  resolved.

         22                 MR. GREGORIOU: There's nothing

         23  outstanding.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: All right, but

         25  you need to look into that because to come back
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          2  again in two years and if they've got more

          3  violations because you're not understanding why you

          4  got the violations that is a difficult position for

          5  us to be in.  So I suggest that you really strongly

          6  work with the Councilman in the area.  He can really

          7  guide you through this and everything else.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know Council

         10  Member Felder has something to say.

         11                 I would just add that in terms of

         12  staff has analyzed sidewalk cafes for quite some

         13  time.  They are very familiar with the number of

         14  violations these type of cafes get, and needless to

         15  say, your cafe has gotten more violations than any

         16  other sidewalk cafe in the entire City.  So I mean

         17  something is clearly wrong, and I think you've got

         18  to recognize that and make corrections for the

         19  future.

         20                 Council Member Felder

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         22  much.  My question has less to do with the

         23  applicant, but rather with the process, and I know,

         24  thanks to your leadership, the issues with zoning

         25  and compelling the City to notify every homeowner of
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          2  some change that might take place.  I know that

          3  there is a responsibility on an owner to be aware of

          4  what's going on with their business.  I'm just

          5  curious for the record  --  I don't know myself  --

          6  that letter that you received, who did you receive

          7  that from?

          8                 MR. GREGORIOU: The City Council.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: From the City

         10  Council.  I'm just wondering, I know that the Land

         11  Use staff may hate me, but if on an issue like this

         12  really where somebody's livelihood is hanging on

         13  this in theory if he didn't show up  --  I mean

         14  let's say he was away for a month, for example, and

         15  it just languished.  What would be the consequence

         16  if he didn't show up?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well you know

         18  thank goodness we've never had that situation.  I

         19  think we had one where somebody didn't show up and I

         20  laid the vote over, but they finally showed up for

         21  the second hearing.  We could conceivably take that

         22  as bad faith on behalf of the owner.

         23                 Normally, Council Member, I agree

         24  with you, but it's their application.  They're

         25  making an application to the City. They have a
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          2  responsibility to follow- up on it.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I see.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Staff is very

          5  good when it comes to calling people and sending

          6  letters.  So in this case, obviously even if he's on

          7  vacation, somebody is running the place, somebody

          8  has to open the mail.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: That's why I

         10  said I'm not discussing this issue itself.  Do we

         11  know how many of these we do a year, whether there

         12  would be a purpose  --  since I like spending the

         13  City's money  --  to send it certified return

         14  receipt or certified?

         15                 Again, I'm not excusing any behavior

         16  that's irresponsible.  I'm just throwing it out

         17  because let me tell you, I get mail into my office,

         18  and if I was held to the rule that you're giving me,

         19  I think I'd be in a lot of trouble.  I'm very

         20  serious.  A lot mail comes in, and every once in a

         21  while even something important slips through the

         22  cracks.  That's all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well staff has

         24  just advised me the City Council does between 1,200

         25  and 1,500 a year.  I think staff obviously heard
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          2  your concerns.  I heard it.  We'll have a follow- up

          3  conversation to see if something needs to be done on

          4  this end, but in the final analysis, it's their

          5  application, not ours. It's not the City's, and

          6  business owners do have a certain responsibility to

          7  follow- up on their own application.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Again, I don't

          9  disagree.  To me, getting it  --  When did you get

         10  it?  On the 25th?  What did you say?

         11                 MR. GREGORIOU: No, the 25th was  --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: No, what's the

         13  date on the mailing?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member, I

         15  think you also have to understand, this is not their

         16  first application.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm not

         18  arguing with you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: They've been

         20  through this process on a number of occasions.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Mr. Chair,

         22  you're arguing with me, but I'm not arguing with

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm not arguing

         25  with you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I'm saying all

          3  right, and I'm throwing something out.  When I want

          4  to argue, I'll tell you.  I promise.  I'm not

          5  arguing with you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

          7  comments, questions, thank you gentlemen.  I would

          8  request that you come back tomorrow morning and

          9  we'll have further conversation.

         10                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Same time?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The vote on this

         12  item will be laid over until tomorrow morning at

         13  9:55.

         14                 MR. CONSTANTINOU: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one else

         17  signed up to speak on this item.  Is that correct?

         18  I will close the public hearing on it.

         19                 We will then move to Land Use No.

         20  514, 101 Rivington Street Cafe, application by NYLA

         21  Cafe, LLC, to establish, maintain and operate an

         22  unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at 101 Rivington

         23  Street, 20075509 TCM.

         24                 Now this application lies within

         25  Council Member Alan Gerson's district.
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          2                 MR. WYGODA: Good morning.  My name is

          3  Steve Wygoda. I'm actually the architect for this

          4  project from the inception of the application.  This

          5  is a new application for a sidewalk cafe on the

          6  corner of Rivington and Ludlow.  It's the south east

          7  corner. Initially, we filed this application with a

          8  petition for 20 tables and 40 seats.  It's a corner

          9  location.  This restaurant, at the time, was under

         10  construction.  The restaurant has recently opened to

         11  some fairly good reviews.  It's basically a

         12  restaurant.

         13                 Having our initial meeting with the

         14  Community Board, we face some resistance and

         15  opposition.  We had discussed at the committee with

         16  the Community Board a reduction of both number of

         17  seats, which would hug only the storefront along

         18  both streets rather than go out onto the edge of the

         19    --  The sidewalks are 12 foot, eight on Ludlow and

         20  12 foot, four on Rivington.  We're allowed four

         21  foot, eight on Ludlow.  We agreed to move the tables

         22  against the storefront on both streets and allow the

         23  remaining sidewalk to be for the pedestrians.  We

         24  also agreed to reduce the operating hours at that

         25  same meeting, and there were further stipulations
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          2  that were made.  In the end, we couldn't come to a

          3  final agreement with the committee and the full

          4  Board denied the application.

          5                 Since that time, we've also been in

          6  conversation with the Council Member and his staff,

          7  and have further agreed to reduce further the number

          8  of seats to 11 tables and 22 seats on Ludlow only

          9  and have no tables whatsoever on Rivington.  We then

         10  went down to nine tables and 18 chairs on Rivington

         11  and have now come to the point of seven tables and

         12  14 seats on Ludlow.  So we're only doing tables on

         13  Ludlow, with the same operating type of hours, and

         14  with the understanding that being that we're just

         15  opening up and that we will be hopefully a good

         16  restaurant  --  The owner is here.  The owner lives

         17  in the neighborhood, owns other establishments in

         18  the neighborhood that have had no problems

         19  whatsoever that I'm aware of.  We would like to have

         20  the understanding that if we do get this kind of an

         21  agreement to reduce dramatically the count that we

         22  would be allowed next season to come back to the

         23  Department of Consumer Affairs with a modification

         24  to go back to the original count.  That's about it.

         25                 I'm sorry.  One more thing.
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          2                 I just wanted to make sure that it is

          3  understood that what we've applied for is fully

          4  legal, meets all the legal requirements of the City

          5  of New York Zoning Resolution Article 4.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: As I mentioned,

          7  this lies within Council Member Alan Gerson's

          8  district.  He has asked that we lay the vote over

          9  until tomorrow morning at 9:55, because he still is

         10  in negotiation with the applicant.

         11                 Are there any questions by Committee

         12  members at this point?

         13                 Council Member Helen Sears

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Just one.

         15  Since the Community Board disapproved, has the

         16  Community Board also been working with the reduction

         17  in the tables?

         18                 MR. WYGODA: We actually dealt with

         19  the Community Board subcommittee level.  The initial

         20  reduction was done with them.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: But you've

         22  reduced even more.

         23                 MR. WYGODA: And that has been reduced

         24  even more with the Council Member's staff, and I

         25  assume that the Council Member's staff has been in
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          2  touch with the Community Board.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I was just going

          5  to mention that that obviously Council Member Gerson

          6  is in contact with the Community Board.

          7                 Council Member Katz

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Why is there

          9  such opposition to this?

         10                 MR. WYGODA: Do you want me to spell

         11  out the opposition?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I can certainly

         13  ask the Community Board myself.  I'm curious, by

         14  your perspective, why there's so much opposition.

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I personally am

         16  not that sure where the opposition is coming from.

         17  So it's hard to say.

         18                 MR. WYGODA: I can speak a little bit

         19  about that, Council Member.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: He owns it

         21  right?

         22                 MR. WYGODA: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If he's not  --

         24  I mean, with all due respect, we know you very well,

         25  but he should know, if you know.  My point is that
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          2  you know what he told you, right?

          3                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Well I don't

          4  know exactly where it's coming from.  I know there

          5  is opposition from the Community Board.  Community

          6  Board 3 is opposed to a lot of things. Why we have

          7  opposition specifically concerning we're a

          8  restaurant and we haven't been causing any problems.

          9    We haven't even been open.  I couldn't tell you.

         10  Like I said, we meet all the requirements.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: You haven't been

         12  open.  It's a new restaurant?

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's a new

         14  restaurant.  We opened last Saturday.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: What was there

         16  before you?

         17                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It was a dress

         18  shop, Spitzer's Dress Shop.  Now, it's Spitzer's

         19  Corner.

         20                 Like I said, we meet all legal

         21  requirements.  We have not caused problems.  We have

         22  the correct amount of space. Our business neighbors

         23  besides us are waiting for that sidewalk cafe

         24  because it will help them get business, and they've

         25  illustrated that to us multiple times.  So where
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          2  opposition is coming from beyond the Community

          3  Board, I have no idea.  Actually the Community Board

          4  itself agreed to pass this sidewalk cafe license

          5  with the stipulation that I wasn't able to live

          6  with.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And that

          8  stipulation was?

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I would not

         10  ever have alcohol outside, and when we're serving

         11  brunch, I can't agree to not have alcohol outside.

         12  A Bloody Mary is alcohol.  A beer is alcohol.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Where is this?

         14                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It's on Ludlow

         15  and Rivington corner.  It's a beautiful place.  You

         16  should check it out.  I'm serious.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Steve, what were

         18  you going to say.

         19                 MR. WYGODA: A couple of the topics

         20  that were raised were the number of pedestrians.

         21  That seemed to be an issue and congestion.  One of

         22  the responses that we had to that was to move the

         23  tables against the storefront, and as Rob had

         24  mentioned, at the committee level, we had come to an

         25  agreement that was actually a written agreement with
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          2  all these stipulations.  The reason Rob didn't

          3  really sign it is because of the alcohol provision

          4  of that stipulation.  Otherwise, everything was

          5  acceptable to him.  We thought the committee was

          6  okay with that, but then the whole thing got

          7  reversed and rejected by the full Board.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

          9  Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now I'm confused

         11  a little bit because I just got the report from the

         12  Community Board, the actual report, and let me read

         13  to you the paragraph that really is appropriate out

         14  of two pages.  Whereas Community Board 3 requested

         15  that the applicant agreed by signing a change order

         16  to decrease the size of his proposed sidewalk cafe

         17  to 11 tables with 22 chairs on Ludlow, all of which

         18  would be flush against his facade, to close the

         19  sidewalk cafe at 10 o'clock to minimize additional

         20  night time noise and congestion.  Then it's just one

         21  sentence, whereas the applicant has refused to sign

         22  such an agreement.

         23                 Basically what you're saying today,

         24  am I right, that you now agree to all these changes?

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Well what you
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          2  have written there is not accurate actually.  On the

          3  original meeting, which was not a full board

          4  meeting, the condition was alcohol.  In which case,

          5  I wouldn't do that.  Then at the full Board hearing,

          6  they wrote this which is not what we discussed at

          7  the other hearing, and I would have never not signed

          8  that one.  That one doesn't have the alcohol

          9  stipulation.  I'm willing to sign that one right now

         10  and go on with it.  No problem.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         12                 Any other questions from Committee

         13  members?

         14                 Council Member Sears, did you want to

         15  say something?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: You need that

         17  permit to serve alcohol outside.  I mean you

         18  wouldn't be able to serve that.

         19                 MR. WYGODA: Well you can't have table

         20  and chairs outside without a DCA license.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's right.

         22  Okay.  No, I understand.  So as a result, and this

         23  is a clinical question, if someone is licensed, if a

         24  business is licensed by the agency, can a Community

         25  Board put a restriction that they not do what they
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          2  are licensed to do?  That's the issue I'm raising.

          3  They can't.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Again, remember

          5  that the Community Board is only advisory.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: This applicant

          7  is within their rights to say they wouldn't sign

          8  that piece.  So then I'm saying we shouldn't look at

          9  it negatively the fact that he wouldn't sign that

         10  piece because I don't believe the Community Board

         11  has a right to deny what an agency approves.  So

         12  what I'm saying is that the fact that he didn't sign

         13  it should not be as a negative towards this

         14  applicant.  That's what I want to be clear on.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, absolutely.

         16  I wasn't trying to infer anything.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: No, no, no.  I

         18  know you weren't.  It's just I was confused.  I

         19  thought that was the case. I wanted you to clarify

         20  it because I think, and not by you, but when that is

         21  expressed a Community Board has taken a prerogative

         22  that in my opinion they don't have a right to do so.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member,

         24  this actually has come up before where Community

         25  Board  --  again, it's only advisory  --  makes a
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          2  recommendation that is stricter than the regulation

          3  actually is.  We can either agree with it, ask the

          4  applicant to do it on their own, but in the final

          5  analysis, if the applicant refuses to do something

          6  that is beyond the law, it really is a question for

          7  us whether or not we deny the application based upon

          8  some additional criteria.

          9                 We were recently sued, and we lost

         10  that case.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Well that's why

         12  I raise that issue because I don't think that  --  I

         13  mean we're looking at the law, and we look at

         14  working with communities.  If we allow the extension

         15  of an advisory committee to supersede the law of a

         16  license, I think the Committee has problems.  That's

         17  why I raise that.

         18                 Okay.  I thank you.  We can move on.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The point is well

         20  taken.

         21                 Council Member Stewart

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What is the C

         23  of O occupancy number for the restaurant that is

         24  adjacent?

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: The occupancy
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          2  of the restaurant?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: About 250

          5  people I believe by the means of egress.  I don't

          6  think we could fit that many actually.  I'm not

          7  exactly sure of the number.  I think it's 250

          8  people.

          9                 MR. WYGODA: The legal limit of what

         10  they're permitted, based on egress and exits, is

         11  250.  I'm not sure that they could fit that many.

         12                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We could

         13  probably fit about 150 people inside the restaurant,

         14  but since we have such a vast egress, legally we are

         15  allowed to fit more.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Mr. Chair, my

         17  concern basically is this.  If they were to sign

         18  this agreement, does this have any binding, if they

         19  are within the law, if they are doing what they are

         20  supposed to doing?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm sorry.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I was asking

         23  basically, this agreement that the Community Board

         24  has asked them to sign, does that have any weight?

         25  Does it have any legal binding thing on it? Because
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          2  of the fact that if they're within the law and

          3  they're doing what they're supposed to do, an

          4  agreement like that would that have any binding?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, actually the

          6  agreement would be outside the actual Land Use

          7  approval.  It would be between, in effect, a

          8  gentlemen's agreement between the Community Board

          9  and the applicant.  Obviously, in any situation, if

         10  the applicant then violated that agreement then the

         11  next time it comes up for renewal the Community

         12  Board would take that into account.  It technically

         13  is not part of the official approval, and we can

         14  just approve any application if they're within the

         15  law, within the legal requirements.

         16                 Obviously, Council Members want to

         17  assure that these sidewalk cafes fit in with the

         18  neighborhood and sometimes there are extenuating

         19  circumstances which can be discussed and addressed

         20  by these extra little agreements.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just feel

         22  that the Community Board is only an advisory board,

         23  and to go as far as trying to get clients to sign an

         24  agreement, I think it's way out. I don't think that

         25  should be even part of what should be done.  If they
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          2  can advise what they would like, but at least to

          3  have them subject themselves to be signing an

          4  agreement, I think that's way over and above what

          5  they should be doing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          7  questions from Committee Members?

          8                 I'm sorry, Council Member Katz.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: This is an

         10  unusual day for us because normally with sidewalk

         11  cafes, when it gets to us, normally it's agreed

         12  upon.  It's not something that normally waits until

         13  the day of the meeting for everyone to sort of get

         14  it together.  So I guess my confusion here is that,

         15  with all due respect, there seems like there is

         16  something else going on.

         17                 So this is Soho or Bowery.  I guess

         18  it is.

         19                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Lower East

         20  Side.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: It's the Lower

         22  East Side, but it's in the area where it's not an

         23  unusual aspect to have something like this.  So my

         24  question to you is do you own any other properties?

         25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes, I do.  I
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          2  own Fat Baby, which has no problems whatsoever.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Any other

          4  properties?

          5                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If I ask the

          7  Community Board and the other restaurant that you

          8  have a restaurant in will they tell  --

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You mean do I

         10  lease other properties?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No.  My question

         12  is if I went to the Boards or the elected officials

         13  in the areas that you have other establishments,

         14  would they tell me there is no problem?

         15                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: If you look on

         16  any of the ECB, DOB, the SLA, I have no violations.

         17  I have nothing.  I run my business  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: This is a very

         19  specific question I'm asking.  Listen to the

         20  question I'm asking.  If I ask the Community Board,

         21  and the community, whether these's a problem with

         22  any of your other establishments, would they tell me

         23  no?

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm saying they

         25  should 100 percent tell you no.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: They should say

          3  no.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What they'd

          5  say, I have no idea because like I said, Community

          6  Board No. 3 is a very difficult Community Board, but

          7  they should absolutely 100 percent tell you no.

          8  There's no problem with any I've run.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

         10  Thank you.

         11                 MR. WYGODA: Council Member, we've

         12  been negotiating and talking to Council Member and I

         13  think there was issue dealing with the fire

         14  yesterday that caused a delay to this potential

         15  agreement of what we're going to do.  I think that's

         16  one of the reasons that it's being laid over until

         17  tomorrow, but we've been working very hard with the

         18  Council Member to come up with some kind of an

         19  agreement.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: But my issue is

         21  less the Council Member, although I know the Council

         22  Member  --  But 41 to zero is a pretty major vote at

         23  the Community Board.  I mean it's not like it's 23

         24  to  --  you know.  It's 41 to zero.  So that's why

         25  it looks like there is something else happening out
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          2  there that I don't know.  By tomorrow, I will.

          3                 Thanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          5  Felder has a question.

          6                 I was just given a notice.  I hadn't

          7  seen this before.  We do have a representative of

          8  Community Board 3 here.  So after we finish with

          9  this, we'll have testimony from a representative

         10  from the Board.  That might be helpful.

         11                 Council Member Felder

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 The representatives of the Council

         15  Member, I think, are here at the hearing, and from

         16  my point of you, I respect whatever the Council

         17  Member of that community feels and the issues that

         18  he may have, or she may have, to discuss with you.

         19                 I just did want to say for the record

         20  that the Government Operations Committee will be

         21  holding a series of hearings on Community Boards

         22  this fall.  We intend to try  --  I underline try

         23   --  to make some history by reconstructing and

         24  trying to come up with strict recommendations

         25  because I think anyone that has had anything to do
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          2  with a Community Board knows that when they act in

          3  good faith there's nothing better.  When they don't

          4   --  We've had here, I think during my tenure, we

          5  had a situation where they wanted to turn down a

          6  cafe because the guy owned a building that he was

          7  turning into a co- op somewhere else in the City.

          8  That has nothing to do with the applicant for the

          9  cafe. Just because a Community Board, or some

         10  members, or somebody who is influential, decides

         11  guess what we hate this guy and we're going to fix

         12  him, or they're trying to extract some other

         13  agreement in some way.  We have these situations

         14  when it comes to zoning changes and variance changes

         15  as well.

         16                 So I want to echo what Council Member

         17  Sears said which is that the Community Board says

         18  something, or doesn't say something, or agrees or

         19  doesn't agree, in and of itself is meaningless

         20  unless we know, as Council Member Katz said, what's

         21  behind what's going on.  So it doesn't mean anything

         22  to me as well, and we hope to try to straighten

         23  these things out because I know some of the Boards,

         24  at least one in my district.  There are two or three

         25  that are extraordinary.  One of them is horrendous,
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          2  and I think that it warrants the hearings that we're

          3  going to have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          5  Council Member.

          6                 Seeing no other questions from

          7  Committee members, thank you.

          8                 MR. WYGODA: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We will call

         10  Susan Stetzer.

         11                 I remind everybody we will have the

         12  vote on this item 9:55 tomorrow morning.

         13                 MS. STETZER: Thank you.  Good

         14  morning, Chair Avella and Council Members.  Before I

         15  start my testimony, I would first like to explain an

         16  unfortunate situation.  I think because of some

         17  misinformation I guess between your staff and the

         18  Council Member, we were told this meeting was

         19  postponed and I just found out yesterday afternoon

         20  that it's being held.  So I am prepared, but I am

         21  supposed to have a letter of support from the

         22  Commanding Officer of the 7th Precinct.  I still

         23  hope to get that to you before your vote tomorrow

         24  and the Block Association wanted to testify.  I will

         25  have a letter from the Block Association for you
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          2  before tomorrow.

          3                 Just to also clarify some of the

          4  things that were said.  As far as the liquor

          5  license, the liquor license from the SLA does not

          6  extend to the sidewalk cafe.  It was the beer, wine

          7  license permitted for the establishment.  If the

          8  applicant opens a sidewalk cafe, he then goes back

          9  to the SLA to extend the license, and the Community

         10  Board can, again, recommend one way or another. I've

         11  actually never heard of a license being denied for a

         12  sidewalk cafe.  This is true even if they want to

         13  extend to a second floor or enlarge a place.  The

         14  liquor license is not automatic.

         15                 As far as the stipulations with the

         16  sidewalk cafe for changing the number of tables and

         17  that sort of thing, if both the Community Board and

         18  the applicant agrees, that is actually written into

         19  the method of operation if DCA agrees, and we will

         20  get a revised plan from them.  So it is within the

         21  purview of the Community Board to try to negotiate

         22  and come to an agreement.

         23                 Also I think the discussion about

         24  some of the conversations that went on at the

         25  Community Board are very out of context.  All of the
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          2  things being discussed, including the number of

          3  tables and chairs, were part of discussions.  The

          4  issue about not serving was actually  --  The reason

          5  that came up is because the applicant said I don't

          6  really care about serving liquor.  This is for a

          7  restaurant.  So I was actually the person that said

          8  then you wouldn't mind not serving liquor there.  It

          9  was a serious issue.

         10                 To preface my testimony, Community

         11  Board 3 has not taken a position against sidewalk

         12  cafes.  This is the first call up we have ever

         13  requested, and it is in response to issues regarding

         14  the location.  Community Board 3 recognizes that

         15  sidewalk cafes provide an amenity to New York

         16  residents and visitors, contribute to a vibrant

         17  street life and they are a source of additional

         18  revenues for business owners in the City.  The

         19  original DCA guidelines reference sidewalk cafe

         20  licenses as licenses and revocable consents to use

         21  public space needed to operate a portion of a

         22  restaurant on a public sidewalk.

         23                 Community Board 3 has several areas

         24  that are among the most densely used destination

         25  nightlife areas in the City, and Ludlow/Orchard is
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          2  the most dense and loudest.  Ludlow, along with

          3  Orchard Street, is living history of our immigrant

          4  residential community.  It is also gentrified and

          5  now home to others new in the community.  The first

          6  floor and some second floors of these buildings are

          7  traditionally commercial.  They point I am trying to

          8  make is that this has always been a place where

          9  families have lived.  There have always been

         10  neighborhood bars and restaurants, but they served

         11  the people who lived and worked here and did not

         12  cause problems of an overcrowded destination hot

         13  spot in the middle of a residential area.

         14                 Another point I'm trying to make is

         15  the original DCA sidewalk guidelines reference only

         16  restaurants.  The primary activity on Ludlow is

         17  drinking and loud partying by young people. The

         18  Community Board is June 2007 voted on a resolution

         19  asking DCA to protect the quality of life of its

         20  resident and promote public safety on its sidewalks

         21  by restricting the issuance of sidewalk cafe

         22  licenses to restaurant consistent with its

         23  guidelines.  This establishment features 50 beers on

         24  tap, besides bottled beer, and is currently applying

         25  for a full liquor license.  I have included reviews
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          2  and blogs about this place with my testimony.  To

          3  quote from one, approach this like you would any run

          4  of the mill European beer chalet on the Lower East

          5  Side.  Take a seat at a bench at the communal table,

          6  grab a stein of beer and stare out of the large open

          7  windows at the circus that is Rivington Street.  The

          8  owner is quoted as saying they have the single

          9  greatest selection of beers ever assemble in the

         10  City  I know that DCA must consider whether the

         11  applicant meets criteria.  However, outdoor bars

         12  were not considered in the original licensing, only

         13  restaurants.

         14                 The City Council, with the Mayor, has

         15  just passed a new noise law that penalizes bars

         16  among others who have noise above a specified level

         17  that could be heard 15 feet from the source on the

         18  street.  The noise code is obsolete when you locate

         19  the source of the noise on the street by locating

         20  outdoor bars on the sidewalk.

         21                 I would specifically like to describe

         22  the nature of this corner.  The area is so congested

         23  that the Commanding Officer of the 7th Precinct

         24  requested Board support to remove parking from the

         25  parking lane on Friday and Saturday nights to keep
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          2  traffic moving and to cut down horn honking.  DOT

          3  has since installed the signage.

          4                 Last year, the Community Board 3 SLA

          5  committee chair and I joined the Commanding Officer,

          6  the SLA Commissioner Noreen Healy, State Senator

          7  Martin Connor and a representative from Council

          8  Member Gerson's office to tour Ludlow and the

          9  surrounding streets from midnight to 1:00 a.m. on a

         10  Saturday night.  I would be happy to coordinate

         11  another tour like this because you cannot believe it

         12  otherwise.  The sidewalks are packed and spill out

         13  into the streets.  People hang out in the streets,

         14  sit on the curbs, talk, smoke, drink and scream.

         15  Adding more loud drinkers to this mix not only adds

         16  to the noise, it presents safety issues not

         17  addressed in DCA criteria by making the sidewalk

         18  more congested.

         19                 One resident and the CBA committee

         20  meeting particularly referenced the elderly and

         21  disabled who would not be able to maneuver around

         22  outdoor cafes on a congested sidewalk.  The over-

         23  congestion and the many complaints by the community

         24  creates a drain on City resources that is not being

         25  met by increasing police staffing, which has become
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          2  an annual CB 3 top budget priority.

          3                 Community Board 3 has more commercial

          4  noise complaints than any other Board in Manhattan

          5  by more than 1,000. Year- to- date is 3,504.  The

          6  next highest is 2,394.  Of the over 3,000, over

          7  1,000 are from zip code 10002, which is the 7th

          8  Precinct.  A letter from the Commanding Officer of

          9  the Precinct, which is in the package, states the

         10  vast majority of my 311 calls for noise, which are

         11  in the hundreds, come from this area particularly on

         12  Friday and Saturday nights when the area is flooded

         13  with people into the early hours of the morning.

         14  The noise level is often too unacceptable and is

         15  regularly caused by no single offender but by the

         16  cacophony of sound of the hundreds, if not

         17  thousands, of individuals on the street.

         18                 At the CB 3 committee meeting, the

         19  applicant admitted that most of the petitions he

         20  submitted were from business owners, not from

         21  residents of the area.  The petitions itself state

         22  that the cafe will help business and decrease

         23  waiting time for seating during peak brunch and

         24  dinner hours of the summer.  There is no proof that

         25  this sidewalk cafe will help decrease waiting time.
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          2  History has shown that the more establishments there

          3  are the more people come and the longer the wait.

          4  It would make more sense to have fewer

          5  establishments in the same way that narrowing a road

          6  decreases traffic because less cars use it.

          7                 I'm going to skip to the end.

          8  Community Board 3 knows that the DCA and City

          9  Council must consider whether an applicant meets

         10  criteria for licensing.  We believe that it goes

         11  without saying that the needs of the residents to

         12  have a strong economy and vibrant city must be

         13  balanced with the needs of the residents who live

         14  and work here.  Issues of safety and the drain of

         15  City resources must also play a part in planning.

         16                 We also point out that the DCA

         17  guidelines are for restaurants, not bars.  The

         18  guidelines do not address safety issues and issues

         19  of over- congestion and the need for planning which

         20  must be taken into account.

         21                 If I could just mention two more

         22  things in reference to the applicant's testimony.

         23  First of all, the Community Board has just approved

         24  another bar by the same applicant on Essex Street, a

         25  different location.  So it is not that we have
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          2  anything against this applicant.  We really pride

          3  ourselves on being fair and really listening to

          4  everybody.  Although the applicant does have the Fat

          5  Baby that he mentioned, I don't believe it's true to

          6  say they've never had problems.  I believe they have

          7  and I believe they've been working with the

          8  Commanding Officer to work them out. We appreciate

          9  the fact that he has been cooperating with the

         10  Precinct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You'll try to get

         12  me that additional testimony before tomorrow.

         13                 MS. STETZER: Absolutely.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Great.

         15                 Council Member Katz, do you have a

         16   --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Just out of

         18  curiosity, do you know either off the top of your

         19  head, or through documents that you have, how many

         20  sidewalk cafes that have come to you that you have

         21  approved or disapproved?

         22                 MS. STETZER: I would have to say it

         23  has to be over 99 percent approved.  We would have

         24  to go back.  We could go back on our website.  We

         25  actually have all our votes on our website, and I
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          2  could actually get you that information before

          3  tomorrow morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: If it's on your

          5  website, we can get it.

          6                 MS. STETZER: If you go, you have to

          7  go into our votes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right.

          9                 The second thing is do you know what

         10  the problems are at the other cafe keeping in mind

         11  what Councilman Felder said because I don't

         12  necessarily disagree with him?  But keeping in mind

         13  what he said, what are the other issues at the other

         14  cafe?

         15                 MS. STETZER: It's not a cafe, it's a

         16  bar.  I don't believe he has any other sidewalk

         17  cafes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, but the

         19  question I had was at this bar, what's the other

         20  issues that he has with the police?

         21                 MS. STETZER: I would have to check,

         22  but I believe it's noise.  I've got to say, in his

         23  defense actually, it's just a very noisy area

         24  because of the nature of the area.  It is very

         25  difficult.  You do have a letter from the Commanding
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          2  Officer in the package not for the sidewalk care.

          3  It's asking to not give a liquor license at this

          4  establishment.  He does say it is the area. It's

          5  generally not a single offender.  It's not that

          6  people are not necessarily responsible.  It is the

          7  area, but if you would actually ask the applicant,

          8  I'm sure he knows what the situations were.  I

          9  believe it's probably noise.  That's the usual

         10  complaint.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         13  Stewart

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just wanted

         15  to ask  -- You said with the addition of the

         16  sidewalk cafe additional space, you said there will

         17  be no decrease in seat waiting time.

         18                 MS. STETZER: We don't believe  --

         19  There is no way to prove it one way or the other.

         20  The applicant has said that creating  --  basically

         21  his petition says creating more sidewalk cafes would

         22  create less waiting time in the area.  We don't

         23  believe it's true.  We believe generally the more

         24   --  Like with roads, the more space you create, the

         25  more geometrically more people that come, and in our
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          2  area  --  I mean we're a hot area.  The more places

          3  that come, the more crowded it gets.  So I would say

          4  history has not proven this to be true.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So you're

          6  saying that with the most space that they will have

          7  to seat people there will be no decrease in the

          8  waiting time.  That means they've got to be doing so

          9  great that it doesn't matter with the amount of

         10  people around in that area.  I would assume that

         11  there would be a decrease in the waiting time if you

         12  get more space.

         13                 MS. STETZER: The issue is the more

         14  popular the area is, the more people that come.

         15  This place just opened, I believe, this week, and

         16  there's already four blogs telling people how

         17  wonderful this place is and to come.  I would say

         18  that he's going to be very successful and draw more

         19  people, and therefore, it is not going to decrease.

         20  That has been the nature of our community. The more

         21  places we have, the more crowded all the places are.

         22    I wish it weren't true, but unfortunately, that

         23  has proven to be the case.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Do you think

         25  all the things you have mentioned in terms of noise
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          2  and all of that would increase or decrease if they

          3  were not to get the sidewalk cafe space?  Would it

          4  be the same?  Would it be more?  What do you think?

          5                 MS. STETZER: It will definitely be

          6  more.  I believe that there will be more people

          7  eating and drinking on the sidewalk so it will be

          8  louder.  Also it is terribly, terribly congested.

          9                 If you go on our website, there is a

         10  letter, Notice to Liquor License Applicant, and it

         11  states that there are a few areas that are so over-

         12  congested that the Community Board has asked the SLA

         13  not to issue more licenses.  The Commanding Officer

         14   -- you have the letter in the package  --  has made

         15  the same statement.  It is overwhelmed.  You cannot

         16  drive down the street. You cannot walk down the

         17  street.  It is a mess.  I'm serious.  I know it

         18  sounds like I'm being very dramatic, but you should

         19  visit the area.  It is unbelievable.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: My last

         21  question, have you heard the term New York City is

         22  the city that never sleeps?

         23                 MS. STETZER: Yes, I have, and we're

         24  very proud of that.  We've always had a very open

         25  community.
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          2                 I have actually lived in that

          3  community since 1970. We have areas such as Times

          4  Square which draws visitors to stay open all night.

          5  There are areas in some parts of the City that have

          6  traditionally been nightclub areas.  The Lower East

          7  Side has traditionally been a residential area.  We

          8  have always had families that live here.

          9                 If you come to Community Board

         10  meetings, you will hear people crying about how

         11  their children can't get up in the morning because

         12  they can't go to sleep at night.  It is unusual. It

         13  is a residential area.

         14                 We are losing  --  It's not

         15  appropriate to go into it here.  We're losing the

         16  diversity of our local retail needs.  It has to do

         17  with rent and many other things.  We welcome our

         18  business.  We particularly welcome business owners

         19  who live and work in the community.  We just need a

         20  balance so that people can sleep at night.

         21                 We have had over 3,000 complaints

         22  just to 311  -- that doesn't include the Community

         23  Board, and that doesn't include those that go

         24  straight to the police  --  of noise, commercial

         25  noise at night.  It's astounding.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Madam, my

          3  only concern here is that we are stating basically

          4  that most of these buildings around there use the

          5  first floor and the second floor for commercial

          6  space.  Someone said that earlier.  Now you're

          7  saying it's a residential area which is confusing to

          8  me.  Maybe you may have some mixed use.

          9                 MS. STETZER: It absolutely is mixed

         10  use, and those commercial spaces have traditionally

         11   --  We used to have hardware stores, fabric stores,

         12  many things.  This store was a dress store. It has

         13  been commercial.  We are not trying to drive out

         14  bars and restaurants.  We are not trying to drive

         15  out sidewalk cafes.  We are trying to be able to

         16  have our residents sleep at night.  We have just

         17  approved what this applicant has described as a

         18  honky tonk bar on Essex Street.  We are not against

         19  bars.  We are not against the applicant.  It is this

         20  location.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So just its

         22  location. What's the nearest cafe to this one?  Two

         23  blocks?  Four blocks? What's the nearest one?

         24                 MS. STETZER: I cannot give you the

         25  location of the nearest sidewalk cafe because this
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          2  is traditionally not been an area of sidewalk cafes.

          3    However, I can tell you what we do track is the

          4  number of licensed establishments within 500 feet

          5  because that is how the State Liquor Authority

          6  tracks it.  There are many, many establishments.

          7  Again, if you want the information, I can give it to

          8  you.  The applicant actually has it on his

          9  application because he had to supply that

         10  information to the SLA.  There are many  --  It is

         11  one after another of nightlife establishments. We're

         12  not against sidewalk cafes.  The area is over-

         13  congested.  It is overburdened.  There is one after

         14  another after another, and if you would like a

         15  number on that within a block  --  Actually, I think

         16    --  I'm sorry.  It might even  --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Isn't there

         18  one diagram diagonally across the street?

         19                 MS. STETZER: I'm looking.  If you'll

         20  give just a second.  I think it might be in our

         21  testimony.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I could

         23  interrupt for a second just to remind my colleagues

         24  that we still have four other items.  Just please

         25  take that into account.
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          2                 MS. STETZER: Maybe it would be better

          3  if I gave you that information before your vote

          4  tomorrow.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Has the

          8  Community Board ever looked at rezoning that area or

          9  put in a request with City Planning?

         10                 MS. STETZER: Actually, we have a task

         11  force now dealing with that.  We're looking at huge

         12  rezoning.  The City has agreed to a certain portion

         13  with us so we're going ahead with what the City

         14  agrees with first, and have created a task force to

         15  look at this area.

         16                 Again, if you look on our website, it

         17  shows under the 197 Task Force that we are looking

         18  at this area for rezoning.

         19                 Along with that, we are looking at

         20  doing a resolution asking the DCA to consider

         21  looking at certain areas, revisiting certain areas

         22  for sidewalk cafes, very few areas, but we wanted to

         23  do a little bit more research before we did that.

         24  It'll be either September or October.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: The comment is
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          2  I think this raises an issue that we deal with all

          3  the time.  There are two New York Cities.  There's

          4  New York City that the trophy of the world. We get

          5  tourists from all over the world, and we're a city

          6  of communities and neighborhoods, and they come in

          7  direct conflict. At the same time, it doesn't reduce

          8  the responsibilities that we have to protect our

          9  communities, but at the same time have to deal with

         10  the fact that we are a trophy city.  It surprises me

         11  because your growth didn't happen overnight.

         12                 MS. STETZER: It sure didn't.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So I would say

         14  the Board was a little laxed in looking at zoning.

         15                 Secondly, you are going to get a lot

         16  of tourist down there.  I think you're the East

         17  Village, right?

         18                 MS. STETZER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: So the East

         20  Village is like Times Square.  It's like the West

         21  Village.  It's like every area that's become an

         22  international city, and with all due respect to the

         23  Board and to you being on that Board because believe

         24  me I have great respect for community boards.  I

         25  know the effort that's put into them.  The fact is
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          2  though that you are in the heart of a very, very

          3  busy community, and I invite you to come out to

          4  Jackson Heights because if you want to see a

          5  community that is so overcrowded, more so than

          6  Astoria, it is the international area of the entire

          7  country.

          8                 There are ways that we work with

          9  that, and we don't have as much parking facilities

         10  as you do.  So I think issues like this there some

         11  policies that need to be established and some very

         12  definite regulations with the agency because the

         13  Committee in Land Use is thrown into this paradox

         14  that we have the responsibilities for economic

         15  development of the City, for job creation, all of

         16  this stuff that is very offensive to communities.

         17  When you are a very, very busy community, we do not

         18  pick and choose the people who come and sit in an

         19  outdoor cafe.  Some people that stay up late may not

         20  be those that you like to have in the street.

         21  That's not our prerogative to pick and choose who

         22  sits in the table.  So I think there are a lot of

         23  things that are thrown in with this.

         24                 I'm just bringing it up because I

         25  think with Simcha's hearings this fall, this
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          2  Committee needs to look at and bring out to Simcha's

          3  hearings some of the things that we are faced with.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

          6  questions, thank you Susan for coming and

          7  testifying.  I see no one else signed up to speak on

          8  this item so I close the public hearing.

          9                 I'll just make one quick comment

         10  about part of the Community Board 3 testimony.

         11  There was some mention about handicap access and

         12  pedestrian access along the street where this

         13  application is proposed.  Both DCA and staff have

         14  reviewed it.  It fits within the guidelines and

         15  would not impede pedestrian or handicap access.

         16                 I would also make the comment, in

         17  reference to what Council Member Helen Sears said,

         18  that we are required by law, and this did come up

         19  with a previous application which we denied and we

         20  were sued and our decision was overturned.  If an

         21  application comes forward and it meets all the

         22  guidelines, turning it down for these other issues

         23  is not appropriate.  We were reprimanded for doing

         24  that.  So I think we have to take that into account.

         25    If in fact there are other issues that we feel are

                                                            61

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  important then I think it goes right to your point

          3  that the law will then have to be changed.

          4                 Next item is the Bleeker Street

          5  application by Gadberry Pizza to continue, maintain

          6  and operate a unenclosed sidewalk cafe located at

          7  69- 71 Seventh Avenue South, 20075402 TCM. This

          8  application lies within the Speaker's district.

          9                 MR. GREENWOOD: Good morning.  My name

         10  is Greg Greenwood.  I'm a manager for Bleeker Street

         11  Pizza, and thank you for the opportunity to speak to

         12  the Council Committee.  With your permission, with

         13  your indulgence, whatever the right term is, I'd

         14  like to read a letter that was written by the

         15  corporate President, Douglas Greenwood  --  you'll

         16  notice the last name is the same as my own  --  to

         17  Council Speaker Quinn on August 10th.  I'd like to

         18  read that into the record.  Would that be all right?

         19                 Again, the letter is dated August

         20  10th, 2007, and it's from Douglas Greenwood,

         21  Corporate President, Gadbury Pizza, Inc. Trading as

         22  Bleeker Street Pizza, and the letter is addressed to

         23  Council Speaker Christine Quinn.  The text of it is

         24  dear Council Speaker Quinn, I'm writing to address

         25  the matters that were brought to my attention
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          2  regarding concerns related to the sidewalk cafe

          3  attached to Bleeker Street Pizza at 69 Seventh

          4  Avenue South.  It is my attention to work with the

          5  neighborhood reserve so that my establishment

          6  contributes to the aesthetics and safety and the

          7  corner of Seventh Avenue South and Bleeker Street.

          8                 The following concerns were brought

          9  up.  The current footprint of the cafe should not be

         10  expanded or allowed to "drift". I agree to the

         11  current footprint with the addition of one table and

         12  two chairs that it can accommodate and we will

         13  delineate lines on the sidewalk marking the

         14  appropriate parameters to prevent the drift.

         15                 The next paragraph is sidewalk cafe

         16  are not well enough maintained.  Bleeker Street

         17  Pizza personnel will be assigned to conduct hourly

         18  inspections and perform the cleaning and sweeping of

         19  tables, floors and the immediate are.

         20                 Multiple bikes chained to the lamp

         21  post in front of Bleeker Street Pizza and adjacent

         22  to the crosswalk creating an unsafe condition for

         23  pedestrians using the crosswalk  --  No bicycles

         24  belonging to Bleeker Street Pizza will be chained to

         25  the lamp post.
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          2                 In addition to addressing these

          3  concerns, I would like to establish means of direct

          4  communication with various community- based

          5  organizations including the Central Village Block

          6  Association, Community Board 2 and Council Speaker

          7  Quinn's Office by providing my cell phone number and

          8  my Bleeker Street main manager's so that if future

          9  concerns should arise we would address them in a

         10  timely manner.

         11                 The letter is signed by Douglas

         12  Greenwood, again, Corporate President.

         13                 The gist of the letter is that there

         14  were three issues brought to our attention that were

         15  concerns of the community and we believe we are

         16  addressing each of those concerns appropriately,

         17  immediately and we're in total agreement with it.

         18                 That's all I have.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: For the record,

         20  how many tables and chairs are we talking about in

         21  total?

         22                 MR. GREENWOOD: We currently have two

         23  tables and four chairs.  Within the same footprint,

         24  without expanding the area on the sidewalk that is

         25  being used, we would like to add one additional
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          2  table and two chairs.  So we're going from two

          3  tables and four chairs to three tables and six

          4  chairs.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I don't know if I

          6  mentioned but Speaker Quinn is in favor of the

          7  application given the August 10th letter.

          8                 Any questions from Committee members?

          9                 Thank you, sir.

         10                 MR. GREENWOOD: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have one person

         12  signed up to speak in favor of the application,

         13  Dorothy Green, representing the Greenwich Village

         14  Block Association.

         15                 MS. GREEN: I'm Dorothy Green, and

         16  it's the Central Village Block Association that I

         17  represent.  We are pleased that this business has

         18  been very cooperative with the Block Association.

         19  The president of our association wrote to Speaker

         20  Quinn.  I'd just like to read  --  it's a brief

         21  letter  --  read part of it.

         22                 I believe that based on the following

         23  conditions, our Block Association can in good

         24  conscience withdraw our opposition to renewing this

         25  permit.  Those conditions are as follows.
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          2                 The sidewalk area will retain the

          3  current footprint. There will be three tables, six

          4  seats.  The barrier will be in the same position and

          5  will not creep closer to the corner.  Bleeker Street

          6  Pizza's bicycles will be removed from the post that

          7  is on the corner impeding pedestrian access.  Staff

          8  will be designated to keep the sidewalk seating area

          9  clean and free of trash.

         10                 For these reasons, and the

         11  cooperation of the owner, we are happy to support

         12  the application.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Unless there is

         14  somebody else signed up to speak on this item, we'll

         15  close the public hearing.

         16                 We will now move to Land Use No. 522

         17  and 523.  I'll do both of them together.  C 060271

         18  ZMK, C 060272 ZMK, two applications by Commerce Bank

         19  within Council Member Gentile's district.

         20                 MR. HORNSTEIN: Good morning, Mr.

         21  Chairman.  My name is Howard Hornstein.  I am a

         22  partner in the law firm of Cozen O'Conner.  We are

         23  land use consult to Commerce Bank.  With me is my

         24  partner, Peter Geis.

         25                 These are two applications within
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          2  Community Board 10 and I want to state for the

          3  record we have worked closely with Councilman

          4  Gentile and he supports these applications.  Both

          5  these applications are supported by the Community

          6  Board.

          7                 I'll let my partner Peter Geis answer

          8  any direct questions.  If you would like a

          9  presentation, we're more than happy to make it.

         10                 Commerce Bank is a good neighbor

         11  where they locate throughout the City, and it is

         12  their intention to be a good neighbor in these two

         13  branches.

         14                 MR. GEIS: Good morning.  I'll start

         15  with the matter on 99th Street and 4th Avenue.  That

         16  area currently has a 100 foot deep commercial

         17  overlay.  The proposal is to make the overlay 150

         18  feet deep.  There is a change on the avenue from

         19  moderate density on the avenue to low density in the

         20  mid- block.  That will remain undisturbed.  So the

         21  only change is to bring commercial use capability

         22  further in, but the Bay Ridge Special District

         23  regulations about higher density on the avenue and

         24  lower density on mid- block is unchanged.  We think

         25  that's a critical thing so that everybody
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          2  understands, and what this does is it enables

          3  Commerce Bank to put in a full service bank which

          4  includes a drive through facility, ATM and retail

          5  banking operation on the site.

          6                 Commerce, if any of you have them in

          7  your district, you know Commerce maintains the

          8  property well and that's the full intention to

          9  maintain.  This one in particular has at 199 4th

         10  Avenue has a very large landscape buffer to make

         11  sure that there is significant separation between

         12  the parking lot and the residents who live in the

         13  mid- block.  Any questions on this site?

         14                 The other site is in the area of what

         15  is the Dyker Heights Rezoning that I believe your

         16  Committee voted on just last month, and it's to put

         17  a commercial overlay in the intersection that

         18  previously had no commercial overlay.  The Dyker

         19  Heights Rezoning put in overlay in the other three

         20  corners of this intersection with this site being

         21  left out because it was a pending action.  The site

         22  has been a gas station since before World War II and

         23  all four corners in this intersection have been

         24  commercial for as long as we have records.

         25                 Again, they would be putting in a
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          2  full service bank with drive through facilities and

          3  it will be a landscaped site. The zoning plan for

          4  this corner is the same zoning that was voted on and

          5  approved for the other three corners of the

          6  intersection.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you just go

          8  into for a second the restricted declaration on this

          9  site.

         10                 MR. GEIS: That's for what we call the

         11  Bay Ridge site, the 99th and 4th Avenue site.  There

         12  was some concern raised that if Commerce Bank did

         13  not stay at the site that you would have commercial

         14  encouragement further into the mid- block beyond the

         15  planned parking and circulations based on the

         16  Commerce plan.

         17                 There's a restrictive declaration

         18  plan signed by the property owner in which any

         19  commercial development that comes to the site would

         20  be restricted to commercial structures within what

         21  is now the existing 100 feet from the corner.  So

         22  that if Commerce Bank were to leave the site some

         23  time in the future, any other occupant that came in

         24  could put commercial, as they always could, along

         25  the Avenue and then that area from 100 to 150 feet
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          2  from the Avenue would have to be used for parking

          3  and circulation as is shown on the Commerce Plan.

          4                 The Community Board and the Borough

          5  President's office worked closely with us on the

          6  declaration and they are satisfied with it and it

          7  has been recorded against the property.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And, again,

          9  Council Member Gentile is in favor of both

         10  applications.  Any questions from Committee members?

         11    Thank you.

         12                 MR. HORNSTEIN: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I see no one

         14  signed up to speak on this item.  Is that correct?

         15  I will then close the public hearing on this matter.

         16                 We will move to the last item which

         17  is in Council Member Sears' district.  Land Use No.

         18  527, commonly referred to as Plaza 75, C 070065 ZMQ,

         19  changing from an R6B district to an R7X district,

         20  property bounded by Broadway and other streets.

         21                 Mr. Chairman, members of the

         22  Subcommittee, my name is Lance Michaels and I'm from

         23  the law firm of Statmeyer Balkin. I am here today on

         24  behalf of Plaza 75, LLC considering their

         25  application for a zoning map amendment for the
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          2  western block of 75th Street between Broadway and

          3  41st Avenue in the Elmhurst neighborhood of Queens,

          4  which is shown here.  The project site is shown in

          5  the cross hatch pattern here and this blockfront is

          6  the area of the proposed rezoning.

          7                 Plaza 75, LLC requested the Council

          8  change the zoning designation on this blockfront

          9  from R6B and R6B/C2- 3 to R7X and R7X/C2- 3.  This

         10  rezoning would permit the applicant to build a

         11  largely residential building of approximately 60,000

         12  square feet with 63 dwelling units.

         13                 In addition to the residential use,

         14  the applicant also proposes to donate approximately

         15  5,000 square feet of ground floor community facility

         16  space to the Department of Education for a

         17  preschool, provide ground floor space for medical

         18  offices and parking for 40 vehicles in the cellar.

         19                 The applicant intends constructing a

         20  building that has a seven- story street wall that

         21  rises to 67 feet, then sets back 15 feet, rises one-

         22  story and then sets back 15 feet again before rising

         23  one more story to reach a total height of 87 feet

         24  and nine stories.

         25                 The applicant's development site is
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          2  located in the middle of the blockfront and is

          3  currently vacant.  The site is 120 feet wide and 100

          4  feet deep.

          5                 The applicant believes the proposed

          6  zoning designation is appropriate for this

          7  blockfront for a number of reasons.  75th Street,

          8  while technically not a wide street at 73 feet, is a

          9  much wider than typical narrow street.  Physically

         10  it is treated as a wide street and it has two way

         11  traffic flow and is divided by a center median.

         12  Thus visually is can accommodate greater bulk than a

         13  typical narrow street.  In fact, it already does so.

         14                 Besides the applicant property, there

         15  are three other developments on the blockfront.

         16  Immediately south of the applicant's property shown

         17  here is a two- story house with an attic. Further

         18  south, at the intersection with 41st Avenue, is a

         19  large apartment house of seven stories, 60 feet in

         20  height, 10 feet above the permitted 50 feet in the

         21  R6B with and FAR of 5.47.  To the north of the

         22  applicant's property, at the Broadway intersection,

         23  is another seven- story, 60- foot tall building with

         24  an FAR of 3.87. Thus much of the blockfront is

         25  already developed with buildings substantially
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          2  taller and larger than the existing zoning permits.

          3  The proposed zoning will thus reduce the degree of

          4  non- compliance and at the same time allow us to

          5  build in a form consistent with the existing

          6  buildings.

          7                 In addition to being appropriate due

          8  to the effectively street location and the reduction

          9  of non- compliance, the proposed amendment is

         10  appropriate due to the proximity of the site to a

         11  major transit hub.  It is generally held in New York

         12  City that greater density of development should be

         13  located in proximity to mass transit.  In this case,

         14  the site is located within a few hundred feet of one

         15  of the major transit nexus' in Queens.  At the

         16  intersection of Broadway, Roosevelt and 74th Street

         17  are found the E, F, G, R, V and 7 subway lines.

         18                 Additionally, given this confluence

         19  of multiple subway lines the MTA has created a major

         20  bus facility to accommodate the numerous bus lines

         21  that intersect here.  This includes bus lines that

         22  provide access to LaGuardia Airport, as well as the

         23  rest of the borough, and include the 19B, the 32,

         24  33, 45, 47 and 53 routes.

         25                 This application was certified on
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          2  3/12/07.  The Community Board voted 13 to 13 with

          3  three abstentions.  The Borough President in her

          4  recommendation, expressed strong support for the

          5  application.  In addition, the School Construction

          6  Authority has sent a letter expressing strong

          7  support.  Chancellor Klein has also expressed his

          8  support for the application.  Finally, and certainly

          9  not least, Helen Sears, the local Council Member,

         10  has sent a letter expressing her strong support for

         11  the application.  For all these reasons, we ask that

         12  the application be approved.  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         14  much, Mr. Chair, and thank you for your patience.  I

         15  know it's been a long, long hearing.  So I'll be

         16  brief.  I just urge that my colleagues look at this

         17  project favorably and vote for it.  It is a perfect

         18  example of how the developer in the space that he

         19  has had has been able to, even though the community

         20  vote  --  I just give a brief discussion on that.

         21  When the Community Board held its public hearing,

         22  the committee voted to approve the project, and

         23  there were two restrictions that they had.  One was

         24  that it would be requested of DOT to put up signs

         25  that there would be school in the area.  The second
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          2  one was to see if they could cut a curb so that the

          3  bus for the school children would be able to get

          4  right around through. When there was the Community

          5  Board vote, and I think this is some of the stuff

          6  we've been hearing today, there wasn't a no vote

          7  that had an explanation.  It was just a no vote.  I

          8  think honestly  -- It's a very dear Board and I work

          9  very well with them.  We all do and developers do as

         10  well.  I think the frustration that communities are

         11  experiencing that I mentioned earlier that somehow

         12  it's like well if it's no, nothing happens.  I think

         13  that in that sense it was viewed that way because

         14  there wasn't anything negative that they could say

         15  about the project.

         16                 There are a couple of other things

         17  that weren't mentioned and why I felt inclined to

         18  really support this besides the integrity of the

         19  developer and the work that has been done is that

         20  there is a municipal hospital just a few blocks

         21  away.  That's Elmhurst Hospital which is affiliated

         22  with Mount Sinai.

         23                 As was mentioned, there is also the

         24  latest in transportation hub.  The old one took 15

         25  years to tear down and now there is this modern
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          2  transportation hub.  With everyone saying how we

          3  must ride public transportation and not drive, this

          4  is right in the hub of that which is very, very

          5  enterprising to do what's planned there because the

          6  area around the transportation hub really needs to

          7  be developed.  It needs to be developed

          8  aesthetically, sensibly and with respect for the

          9  community.  Plaza 75 has absolutely taken that into

         10  consideration and are really, I believe, starting

         11  the process for some other development to happen.

         12                 It also is an encouragement  --  I

         13  hope it ends up that way  --  that the doctors who

         14  are coming to Elmhurst Hospital because there are

         15  two bedrooms, there is school in the building, that

         16  will absolutely encourage the doctors who are coming

         17  to service over a million population of their

         18  boundaries will look to this as another

         19  encouragement to remain in a community in which they

         20  service.  So there are many, many pluses to that.

         21                 I respect the Community Board, but I

         22  think I believe that no vote and as a result they

         23  had no vote.  So with that and not belaboring the

         24  point, I truly support it.  We've worked every inch

         25  of the way with this.  They're to be congratulated
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          2  for having the patience that took so long to do as

          3  done and to have the outcome.

          4                 So I thank you very much.  Thank you

          5  for your patience and I thank you for your vote.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

          7  Council Member.  Any questions from Committee

          8  members?  Thank you.

          9                 I see no one signed up to speak on

         10  this item.  Is that correct?  Okay.

         11                 I will close the public hearing.

         12                 That ends our agenda for the day.

         13  I'll just review what we will be voting on and what

         14  is being laid over.  All of the items reflected

         15  under the Jamaica Plan are being laid over.  The

         16  Athens Cafe is being laid over.  The 101 Rivington

         17  Street Cafe in Council Member Gerson's district is

         18  being laid over.  Those will be laid over until

         19  tomorrow morning at 9:55, right before the 10

         20  o'clock Land Use meeting.

         21                 Chair recommends approval of 450 West

         22  17th Street in Speaker Quinn's district, Bleeker

         23  Street Pizza in Speaker Quinn's district, the two

         24  Commerce Bank applications in Council Member

         25  Gentile's district and Plaza 75 application, which
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          2  we just heard, in Council Member Sears' district.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Chairman Avella

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Felder

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Jackson

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Katz

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm going to

         11  vote aye on all. Just two quick comments on Commerce

         12  Bank application.  I have Commerce Bank in my

         13  district and I have to tell you that there are very

         14  few organizations that go in that have been as

         15  responsive to the community on almost every single

         16  thing that we've ever asked for.  So I want to just

         17  thank them on that.  And when I say asked for, I

         18  mean to make it easier on the community to accept

         19  another bank because we get an enormous amount of

         20  banks.

         21                 The second thing is the application

         22  in Council Member Sears' district.  This is a

         23  developer that has been working from the very

         24  beginning with the community, with the Department of

         25  Education to try to not only get an upzoning that
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          2  clearly is beneficial to everyone, but also

          3  beneficial to the community with the Department of

          4  Education.  They have shown enormous patience over

          5  the last  --  a long time as we have worked out and

          6  as the Council Member has worked out this process.

          7  So I'm proud to vote yes on that project as well.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member

          9  Seabrook.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just wanted

         13  to make a comment about Commerce Bank.  I have to

         14  reiterate what Councilwoman Katz has said because

         15  they are in my district.  They are in a very

         16  difficult part of the district where there are

         17  demonstrations outside, freedom of speech, and yet

         18  they have the patience and never create a problem.

         19                 I vote aye on all.  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Stewart

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I vote aye on

         22  all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Vann.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vote stands eight in
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          2  the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          3  abstentions.  LU 522, 523, 403, 515 and 527 passed.

          4  Refer to the full Land Use Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I want to thank

          6  everybody's cooperation.  This hearing turned out to

          7  be a lot longer than we expected.  This meeting is

          8  recessed until tomorrow morning at 9:55.

          9                 (Hearing recessed at 11:30 a.m.)

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            80

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify that

         10  the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of

         11  the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 20th day of August 2007.

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

                                   ---------------------

         23                          LORI KLEIN

         24

         25

                                                            81

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, LORI KLEIN, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22                 -----------------------

                              LORI KLEIN

         23

         24

         25

